
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday, 28th November, 2019
   at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No. 4)

A G E N D A

PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 24th October, 2019.

3 - 6



FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  Council Plan 2020-2024 
 

7 - 20

(D) 8.  Quarter 1-2 Performance Indicators 
 

21 - 28

(D) 9.  Street Cleanliness 
 

29 - 30

(D) 10.  Use of Customer Services Data 
 

31 - 32

(D) 11.  Waste Working Group 
 

33 - 38

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Cassidy (Vice-Chair)
Gawne
Husband
W. McClure
McEwan
McLeavy (Chairman)
Mooney
Morgan
Pidduck
Robson
C. Thomson
Worthington

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Sandra Kemsley
Democratic Services Officer
01229 876336
spkemsley@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday 20th November, 2019



BOROUGH OF BARROW IN FURNESS

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday 24th October, 2019
at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No.4)

PRESENT:- Councillors McLeavy (Chairman), Burley, Cassidy, Gawne, Husband, 
W. McClure, McEwan, Morgan, S. Robson and C. Thomson.

Officers Present:- Alan Barker (Streetcare Manager), Jon Huck (Democratic and 
Electoral Services Manager), Keith Johnson (Assistant Director - Community 
Services), Brooke Parsons (Corporate Support Assistant), John Penfold (Corporate 
Support Manager) and Katie Pepper (Democratic and Electoral Services 
Apprentice).

Also Present: Alec Proffitt (Co-opted Member).

20 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Mooney, Pidduck and 
Worthington. Councillor Burley had attended as a substitute for Councillor 
Worthington for this meeting only.

21 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 11th September, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

22 – Minutes of the Barrow Market Liaison Committee

The Minutes of the Barrow Market Liaison Committee meeting held on 11th July, 
2019 were submitted for information and noted.

23 – Prioritisation of the Work Programme

The Corporate Support Manager reported that following the last committee, the work 
programme had been agreed for four years. 

It had been suggested that an additional item, Public Space Protection Order, 
because of an issues with dogs not being on leads in public places, be added to the 
current year, as follows:-

Year 1 Street Cleanliness
Year 1 Revenues and Benefits Performance 

(update will be provided at the meeting)
Year 1 Members Training 
Year 1 Public Space Protection Order

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



The Chairman had requested Members to join the Public Space Protection Order 
Work Group.

RESOLVED: - (i) To note the information;

(ii) To agree that Councillors Cassidy, Husband and W. McClure would join the 
Public Space Protection Order Work Group.

24 – Waste

The Corporate Support Manager advised the Committee that the amount of 
contamination for Quarter 2, July - September 2019 was as follows:-

Month Tonnage %
July 154.36 56.35%
August 139.96 56.78%
September TBC

Whilst above 50% there had been no significant increase. 

The Streetcare Manager attended the meeting and updated the Committee on the 
waste collection service. He stated that additional information relating to the 
materials that can be recycled was now on the Council’s website. 

The Corporate Support Manager attended the meeting and provided an update from 
the FCC Partnership Board. The Assistant Director - Community Services said that 
he was considering ways to make recycling easier for the public.

RESOLVED: - To note the information.

25 – Member Training

It had been agreed as part of the work programme that a scrutiny review be 
undertaken on Member Training, Councillor Morgan submitted a report to update the 
Committee on the Member Training Working Group and summarised as follows: 

Purpose of the Report

To ensure appropriate actions were in place to monitor the attendance of Member 
training.  Cllrs Morgan and Gawne had been tasked with completing the scrutiny 
review. 

The purpose of the report was to provide the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
the background to Member Training. 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee were invited to discuss and address the 
findings and recommendations in the report and, if agreed, forward to the Executive 
Committee for approval or rejection.

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



Councillor Morgan requested for it to be recorded that Democratic Services had 
portrayed good practice and been flexible while the review was taking place.

1. Recommendations

1.1 The Scrutiny Task and Finish Group made the following recommendations:

1. The Member Development Strategy and Member Learning Programme from 
2019/21 should reference and be linked to the new Council Plan ensuring 
Members had the necessary skills and knowledge to deliver the objectives set 
out in the Plan.

2. Substitute Members who had been unable to complete the mandatory training 
should complete within an agreed timescale or consideration given by Political 
Groups and the Council that they are replaced.

3. All training and briefings from all service areas should be managed, recorded 
and monitored by Democratic Services prior to and instead of any separate 
arrangements being made with Members. 

4. Service areas to include an in-kind cost for their time and resources for delivery 
of internal training for Members. 

5. The Executive Director to lead quarterly thematic briefings for all Members and 
relevant Officers.

6. Training for the remainder of 2019/20 to be delivered in the afternoons with the 
latest start time of 4.00 pm and a limit of 2 hours per training session where 
possible. To be reviewed in 2020/21.

7. Training attendance for the remainder of 2019/20 to be prioritised by those 
Members who have identified a need or who would benefit from a specific 
session.

8. Group Leaders and Whips to actively encourage Members to attend training. 

2. Conclusion

2.1 The scrutiny review confirmed that appropriate actions were in place to monitor 
the attendance of Member training. 

2.2 Barrow Borough Council made a significant investment in its Members in terms 
of a training and development and this was well-received.  Residents could be 
assured that their elected representatives had access to training and were 
skilled to complete the role they were elected to.

2.3 Member attendance in training had increased significantly in 2019/20 in 
comparison to previous years.  Most Members had attended at least one 
training session. 

2.4 It was recognised that Member availability would always be an issue due to 
other responsibilities. However, Member attendance in specific training events 
was gradually increasing towards a percentage level where there was an 
assurance that Members were supported, skilled and confident enough to 
achieve their role in an ever-changing landscape.  This is evidenced as follows:

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 Data collation and evaluation effectively monitored and consistently 
reviewed to improve the process and training offer; 

 Steps were made to identify and dismantle any barriers to attendance; and 

 Steps were made to remove any ad hoc processes when identified

2.5 It was good practice that Barrow Borough Council had a Member Training 
Working Group which met quarterly and had oversight of the Member 
Development Strategy and Member Learning Programme.

2.6 It was good practice that Member training was externally assessed by North 
West Employers. 

2.7 Current good practice could be built on by completing some or all of the 
recommendations above and by continuing on the improvement journey from 
good to excellent, in preparation for the next external assessment by North 
West Employers in 2020. 

2.8 Particular mention must go to Democratic Services who manage the Member 
Learning Programme; administer and provide up to date information for the 
Member Training Working Group and Committees; and provide one to one 
support and mentoring for Members on a daily basis.  Their involvement, 
commitment and flexibility are key to the successful developments and good 
practice highlighted in this scrutiny review. They are open to new ideas to make 
Member training the best that it can be. 

RESOLVED: - To agree the recommendations. 

The meeting closed at 3.03 pm.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



  Part One

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 28th November, 2019

Reporting Officer: Corporate Support Manager

(D)

Title: The Council Plan 2020-2024

Summary and Conclusions: 

The Council Plan has been updated with Officer and Member input to ensure 
we are focusing on the right priorities and outcomes throughout the given 
period to improve the Borough as a whole.

Recommendations: 

To note the Council Plan for the period 2020-2024.

Report

Summary 

The Council Plan was presented to the Executive Committee on 27th 
November, 2019. 

The Council Plan has been revised to take into account updates to the 
Council’s priorities to meet the future challenges and opportunities for the 
Borough. The Council Plan 2020-2024 (Appendix 1) has been developed 
with input from both Members and Officers, to ensure the Council as a whole 
understands and strives to achieve our priority outcomes. 

Introduction

The Council Plan is a key strategic document which sets the priorities for the 
Borough and will guide decision making, including how public money is spent 
during the period 2020-2024. It sits alongside the MTFS and also reflects the 
plans and strategies of other organisations that we will work with. 

The Council Plan sets our strategic direction for the next four years. It is 
underpinned by a performance management framework which will ensure that 
we target our resources in the right areas to deliver our priorities. 

Vision and Priorities

The vision is for our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit.

We will achieve the vision through our three Council Plan priorities;

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



 Enabling our residents to live happy, healthy, productive lives. 

 Creating vibrant, safe and welcoming places where people want to live. 

 Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our residents.

Values and Behaviours:  

We aim to put our residents at the heart of all we do. The values that will drive 
our behaviours are:

 To focus on our community and provide excellent service for all our 
customers and colleagues.

 To demonstrate honesty and integrity by doing the right thing, being open 
and confident to challenge and be challenged.

 To aim high, encouraging creativity and embracing change.
 To be proud and celebrate who we are and what we do.
 Our team will all work together to achieve our shared vision and goals.

Each priority is as follows:

Priority 1: People – Enabling residents to live happy, healthy productive 
lives.
Putting people at the centre of all that we do is a key priority for the Council. 
We will do this by helping them to have the best start in life, enjoy healthy and 
active lifestyles, and have opportunities to improve their well-being by building 
strong communities. We will actively encourage people to work with us to 
design activities that meet their needs.

Priority 2: Place – Creating a great place to live. 
Barrow Borough is a great place where people come to live, work and have 
fun. There is an abundance of natural beauty and heritage but there is also an 
opportunity to offer people more. We will work with our communities so that 
people can enjoy good health and live in a safe environment where they can 
be happy and reach their full potential. We want to build on existing strengths 
and encourage more people to visit the town centres in Barrow and Dalton by 
making them more vibrant so that residents and visitors enjoy a positive and 
memorable experience. We want to protect our natural environment. 

Priority 3: Prosperity – Supporting our economy to thrive to ensure a 
long term economic future for all our community. 
Barrow’s manufacturing heritage and its pivotal role in the defence industry is 
a source of local pride and tradition. Our world class manufacturing expertise 
is recognised worldwide, however to enable inclusive growth we will seek to 
diversify our economy to secure opportunities for our residents by supporting 
other key industries including the growing renewable energy sector. 
In particular we need to secure continued investment in the town and ensure 
our residents have the skills and services to allow them to benefit from the 
growing economy. We will deliver our ambitions through effective joint working 
with public and private sector partners, by offering a clear policy framework, 

Page 8

Agenda Item 7



proactive steps to promote the role and opportunities within the town and by 
securing additional public and private investment.  
Next Steps

Members are asked to recommend that Council endorse the updated Council 
Plan; Council meets on the 21st January 2020.

The draft Plan (Appendix 1) is yet to be finalised in terms of format and final 
text updates; the priorities and objectives are not expected to change but the 
actions may be rephrased or updated.

The final copy of the Council Plan 2020-2024 will be circulated ahead of the 
Council meeting. A designed version will go to Full Council for publication 
along with a ‘Plan on a page’ with success measures aligned. 

Progress and achievement of the Council’s objectives will be monitored 
through the Performance Management Framework and reported to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The Council’s finances will be realigned and reprioritised to support delivery of 
the Council Plan. 

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Corporate Support Assistant 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Barrow Borough Council

Council Plan 2020-2024

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Foreword

TBC from the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council 

Introduction

The Council is committed to creating better lives for the people of Barrow Borough.

The Council Plan is the strategic document that will guide decision making and how we spend public money for the period 2020 – 2024.

It builds on our successes in balancing the Council’s budget to account for the reduction in spending power, whilst still delivering the projects that will regenerate the Borough. 

We will work together to set clear priorities and actions around increasing prosperity through a growing and diverse economy, improving the environment by providing better homes and preserving 
the Boroughs natural beauty, and supporting all people in our Borough; we will make Barrow a great place to live, work and visit.

Our Vision and Values

Our vision is for our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit. 

We will achieve this by putting residents at the heart of all we do. This is underpinned by the following values and behaviours. 

 To focus on our community and provide excellent service for all our customers and colleagues.
 To demonstrate honesty and integrity by doing the right thing, being open and confident to challenge and be challenged.
 To aim high, encouraging creativity and embracing change.
 To be proud and celebrate who we are and what we do.
 Our team will all work together to achieve our shared vision and goals.

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



People

Priority 1: People – Enabling residents to live happy, healthy productive lives.

Putting people at the centre of all that we do is a key priority for the Council. We will do this by helping them to have the best start in life, enjoy healthy and active lifestyles, and have opportunities to 
improve their well-being by building strong communities. We will actively encourage people to work with us to design activities that meet their needs.

Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
More of our residents are living well for longer.  Work with health and care system to develop prevention and 

early intervention plans to reduce health inequalities.
 Use our place leadership role to drive health and well-being 

forums and partnerships to ensure they get the best results 
for our residents.

 Work with partners to tackle specific health issues in the 
Borough:
 Mental illness
 Substance misuse
 Diet and exercise

LEAD OFFICER: Policy and Engagement Officer
. 

More of our residents are making healthy lifestyle choices.  Encourage greater use of leisure facilities including parks, 
woodlands, beaches and open spaces including participation 
in, park run/ Junior Park run/ active Barrow mums. Especially 
for our least active residents.

 Work with Life Leisure to do more to support our 
communities to make healthier choices

 Promote local walks/ activities e.g. walk for health/ cycle 
events through social media.

 Work with Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation Trust to 
deliver Health Priorities. 

 Provide a range of facilities and opportunities to encourage 
participation in sport.

 Promote healthier lifestyles for our own employees

LEAD OFFICER: Assistant Director – Community Services

Our communities are strong, confident and actively 
engaged in shaping their future.

 Celebrate the achievements and successes of our 
communities through publically raising awareness of the 
great things they do.

 Provide support for Voluntary Community Services by 
involving, engaging and empowering them to be at the heart 
of our neighbourhoods.

LEAD OFFICER: Policy and Engagement Officer
 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
People will feel safe where they live  Actively lead the South Cumbria Community Safety 

Partnership and ensure actions to improve safety in barrow 
are delivered.

 Work with partners to protect our most vulnerable residents 
by;
 Tackling homelessness
 Delivering disabled Facilities Grants
 Being Corporate parents
 Supporting people with special educational needs and 

disabilities.
 Contributing to the Cumbria Safeguarding Adults Board.

 Work closely with voluntary community organisations to 
understand key opportunities and challenges within our 
communities and the interventions that may help to 
overcome these.

 Seek to secure new investment that can support the 
empowerment of our communities, in particular those within 
the most deprived parts of the Borough.

 Build community resilience through increasing participation 
in local activities and decision making and enable residents 
to influence and contribute to service delivery.

LEAD OFFICER: Policy and Engagement Officer

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Place 

Priority 2: Place – Creating a great place to live 

Barrow Borough is a great place where people come to live, work and have fun. There is an abundance of natural beauty and heritage but there is also an opportunity to offer people more. We will 
work with our communities so that people can enjoy good health and live in a safe environment where they can be happy and reach their full potential. We want to build on existing strengths and 
encourage more people to visit the town centres in Barrow and Dalton by making them more vibrant so that residents and visitors enjoy a positive and memorable experience. We want to protect our 
natural environment. 

Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
Our Borough has a diverse housing offer, where everyone 
can expect a decent home they can afford to live in. 

 Deliver the Local Plan for developing housing sites 
throughout the Borough. 

 Work collectively with Homes England to deliver Marina 
Village. 

 Prepare evidence base and a Housing Strategy to determine 
priorities and actions needed to improve housing offer. 

 Reduce the number of empty properties.
 Develop a Housing Renewal Policy which focuses on 

delivering improvements which improve the quality of life for 
residents.

 Create an Empty Homes Strategy.
 Encourage the development of supported special needs 

housing in the Borough. 
 Promote through Cumbria Choice Based Letting. 
 Ensure that all Local Authority dwellings continue to meet the 

Decent Homes Standard.
 Explore opportunities to build new social housing with 

partner organisations. 
 Review options for increasing social housing within the 

Borough.
 Work with key partners to deliver transformative 

development at Marina Village, part of a comprehensive 
redevelopment of Barrow’s historic waterfront.

LEAD OFFICER: Director of People and Place
 

Our neighbourhoods are clean, welcoming and attractive.   Work with residents to foster positive attitudes to maintaining 
cleanliness.

 Work with our contractors to deliver effective street cleaning, 
and grounds maintenance services. 

 Be tough on those who blight our neighbourhoods with fly 
tipping, litter and dog fouling through a robust approach to 
enforcement.

 Raise awareness through targeted marketing companies.
 Work closely with representatives from the Boroughs towns 

and villages to ensure they feel engaged and empowered.

LEAD OFFICER: Assistant Director – Community Services

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
Our environment is enhanced, protected and celebrated.  Climate emergency action plan.

 Enhanced greener spaces; public parks, beaches etc. 
 Reduce our use of natural reserves through reduction, 

recycling, reuse.
 Work with partners to raise awareness of natural assets and 

celebrate them. 

LEAD OFFICER: Public Protection Manager

A thriving leisure, culture and sport offer.  Work alongside the BID team to continue improving and 
promoting leisure facilities, cultural offers and retail.

 Through effective communications and joint working with 
Cumbria Tourism and Cumbria LEP to enhance the profile 
and perception of Barrow as a place to visit, live and work in.

 Create a positive image of the Borough to increase tourism
 Culture Compact – with SLDC and Lancaster.
 Improve the amenity of the town, promoting natural 

beauty.
 Maintain the good quality leisure offer provided by the 

Forum, Dock Museum and Barrow Park.
 Develop tourism within the Council by providing greater 

access to information.  Strengthen links to Cumbria 
tourism to present an “off the shelf scripted offer”.

 Create a thriving evening economy to attract residents 
and visitors to the town centres of Barrow and Dalton.

 Embrace Barra culture to promote cultural events at 
venues throughout the Borough.

LEAD OFFICER: Director of Public and Place

Vibrant town centres where people want to visit.  Deliver key improvements to the town centres for the benefit 
for residents, workers and tourists/ visitors. 

 Transform the experience of Barrow as retail and service 
destination for residents, visitors and businesses by 
facilitating a diversity of uses; enhance the public realm and 
increase accessibility.

 Secure and deliver significant new investment for the town 
centre; capitalising on opportunities created by Future High 
Streets and Town’s Deal funding streams.

 Improvement to infrastructure designed to achieve the safe 
and convenient movement of vehicles and pedestrians to 
and within the town centre.  

LEAD OFFICER: Director of Public and Place

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Prosperity

Priority 3 – Supporting our economy to thrive to ensure a long term economic future for all our community. 

Barrow’s manufacturing heritage and its pivotal role in the defence industry is a source of local pride and tradition. Our world class manufacturing expertise is recognised worldwide, however to 
enable inclusive growth we will seek to diversify our economy to secure opportunities for our residents by supporting other key industries including the growing renewable energy sector. In particular 
we have the opportunity to secure continued investment in the town and ensure our residents have the skills and services to allow them benefit from the growing economy.  We will deliver our 
ambitions through effective joint working with public and private sector partners, by offering a clear policy framework, proactive steps to promote the role and opportunities within the town and by 
securing additional public and private investment.  

Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
The Borough will have a strategic role within Cumbria and 
as part of the Lancaster and South Cumbria City Region.

 Engage with districts, county and Cumbria Local Enterprise 
Partnership (Cumbria LEP) members to realise opportunities 
surrounding the Lancaster and South Cumbria City Region 
and prospective growth deal.

 Enhance the reputation role of Barrow as a key sub-regional 
centre for the south of Cumbria.

 Actively pursue opportunities to promote the Borough 
throughout the region, Northern Powerhouse and beyond.  

LEAD OFFICER: Director of People and Place

The Borough will have a strong and diverse economy.  Deliver the employment sites identified through the Local 
Plan. 

 Undertake a full review of assets, capital and resources to 
ensure that they are used to meet strategic objectives.

 Bring forward a new Supplementary Planning Policy to 
support the Local Plan implementation and to maximise the 
opportunities it can present.

 Develop a robust pipeline of schemes for which funding can 
be sought in an opportunistic and timely manner.

 Create conditions for entrepreneurs and businesses to start 
up and grow through – Phoenix Business Centre and 
Harding Rise. 

 Actively seek to encourage inward investment and growth in 
renewable energy sector, visitor economy, creative and 
cultural industries.

 Work with major businesses and key partners to improve 
commercial awareness and take advantage of new 
opportunities. 

LEAD OFFICER: Director of People and Place

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Outcome Action Measuring Activities 
Barrow is a well-connected Borough with improved road, 
port, rail and digital infrastructure.

 Engage proactively with Cumbria LEP, Cumbria County 
Council, Highways England and Transport for the North to 
secure investment in the A590 and A595.

 Work with partners to develop Barrow Port as a gateway for 
bulk material handling, nuclear waste transportation, energy 
services and tourism.

 Engage proactively with Cumbria LEP, Cumbria County 
Council, Network Rail and Transport for the North to secure 
improved connectivity, journey times and services for rail 
journeys to and from Barrow.

 Continue to campaign to increase access to superfast 
broadband.

 Work with Cumbria County Council and Highways England 
to improve signage from the A590 to the town centre.

 Work with Cumbria County Council to improve traffic flow 
and parking in the town centre, making it more accessible 
and attractive to residents, visitors and businesses.

 Promote more sustainable public transport including electric 
buses, walking and cycling alongside a comprehensive 
approach to wayfinding, to promote and improve active 
travel.

LEAD OFFICER: Director of People and Place
 

Our residents have the skills, aspirations and opportunities 
to fulfil their potential.

 Identify current skill gaps
 Work with education providers and training institutions to 

ensure targeted programme to address skill gaps
 Work across sectors to promote a comprehensive 

apprenticeship programme, including Barrow Borough 
Council.

 Work across sectors to deliver a joined up marketing and 
recruitment campaign.

 Promote opportunities for social enterprise.
 Adopt the principles of community wellbeing to ensure all out 

communities benefit. 

LEAD OFFICER: Director of People and Place

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Plan Delivery 

Progress and achievement of the outcomes will be monitored through the Performance Management Framework.

Monitoring reports will be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

A summarised report will be published on the Council’s website.

Management Team will implement any remedial action where objectives are not on track; Overview and Scrutiny Committee may also request remedial action through their discussions on progress 
and presentation of outcomes/ outputs.  Where necessary matters may be escalated to the Executive Committee where the objective may need to be reconsidered and associated actions varied. 
Further breakdown of these outcomes and desired actions will be set within each department’s Service Plans. 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 28th November, 2019

Reporting Officer: Corporate Support Manager

(D)

Title: Quarter 1-2 Performance Indicators

Summary and Conclusions: 

The report shows the Performance Indicators for Quarters 1-2.

Recommendations: 

Members are invited to consider the information.

Report

The Performance Indicator data was presented the Executive Committee on 
27th November, 2019. 

The service performance indicator outputs for Quarters 1-2 are presented at 
Appendix 1.

Where there has been significant variation in the outputs compared to 
Quarters 1-2 the reasons for the variation is detailed below.

1. The number of food safety standard inspections are below target. This is 
attributable to staff levels which is being addressed by an on-going staff 
recruitment exercise. The Public Protection team have focussed on 
inspecting the higher risk businesses during this period and 89% of these 
inspections have been completed. The Public Protection Manager also 
structures the inspections from high to low risk; this is detailed in the 
report. 

2. Forum attendance figures are above the target: The forum’s          
programme continues to grow and develop, attracting some of the largest 
touring shows and comedians in the country. In addition, the forum now 
report the Building users 91,245 and the total income £129,000. This 
Includes additional information that was requested by the Executive 
Committee at their meeting in September.

3. The ‘Operational/ Contractor’ performance indicators are marginally below 
the target set but have improved significantly since Quarter 1. This is 
attributable to improvements in data reporting and a targeted approach by 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



the Streetcare Team and the waste contractor.

4. This is the first quarter reporting on the number of starters and leavers at 
Life Leisure; therefore it will take the full reporting year to start seeing 
some frequency in the results.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Corporate Support Assistant 

Page 22

Agenda Item 8



 

 1 

Performance Indicators 

Performance 

Management 

Framework 

Indicator Rationale  Where  Officer        

Responsible  

Target Q1 & 2 

Staff under-

taking profes-

sional training  

The Council Plan identifies the to 

continue to develop staff. 

Council Plan 

2017-2020,  

Priority 1, 

LE6. 

Executive    

Director  

Number agreed at 

budget 

19 

Planning         

decisions  

Statutory requirement: The Gov-

ernment has set a two year roll-

ing target for the   percentage of 

decision determined within the 

timescale. 

- Development        

Services   

Manager 

(Planning) 

National Annual     

Target:      

Major 60%  

Other 70% 

Majors : 77.8% 

Others : 80.8% 

Forum                

attendance 

Monitor attendance at perfor-

mances and events to inform the 

future cultural offer. 

Council Plan 

2017-2020,  

Priority 2, 

TC1. 

Forum       

Manager 

2018/19—The at-

tendance was 23183. 

The attendance =24,161.  

Building users   = 91,245  

Total income     =£129,000.  

% of Play-

ground         

maintenance    

inspections   

completed  

The Council is committed to en-
courage use of safe leisure facili-
ties through. 

Weekly inspections (Contractor), 
Quarterly (GMCM), Annual 
(RoSPA Inspector) (Aug 18) 

Council Plan 

2017-2020,  

Priority 3, 

HI1. 

Grounds 

Maintenance 

Contracts   

Manager 

100% 100% 

Council Business  

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



 

 2 

Performance Indicators 

Performance 

Management 

Framework 

Indicator Rationale  Where  Officer        

Responsible  

Target Q1 & 2 

Food safety 

standard 

Statutory requirement: To provide 

the public with food safety standard 

information for catering businesses 

within the Borough. 

 

- Public         

Protection 

Manager 

An annual target 
of 348 was 
agreed in 
2018/19. 

The target for 
Q2 is 127. 

Inspections are carried out using a risk based ap-
proach. Our aims are to achieve a 100% inspection 
rate of all high risk premises (A & B Risk) each 
month and 100% inspection rate of all premises by 
31

st
 March 2020. E risk premises are subject to an 

Alternative Enforcement Strategy (AES) which al-
lows for a combination of either desktop and on-site 
audits. Variance in the total numbers are due to 
premises closing or moving from one band to anoth-
er and which therefore may require an additional in-
spection. 

Number of Food Premises Inspected. 

 

Risk Risk Rating Target Q.2 Achieved Q.2 Target 19-20 Achieved 19-20 

High A 1 1 4 2 

  B 16 14 30 22 

C 39 38 66 64 

D 43 35 153 61 

Low E 28 8 106 15 

Council Business  

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



 

 3 

Performance Indicators 

Performance 

Management 

Framework 

Indicator Where  Officer Responsible  Target Q1 & 2 Rationale 

Fly tips collected within 

one working day of   

being reported. 

Refuse, Recycling and 

Street Cleansing    

Contract 2017-2024, 

Schedule 12,           

Performance Targets.  

Streetcare Manager 100% 74% Fly-tipping has a      

detrimental effect on 

the amenity of the   

Borough and removal 

within 1 working day is          

stipulated in the       

contract. 

Containers delivered 

within 7 working days. 

Refuse, Recycling and 

Street Cleansing    

Contract 2017-2024, 

Schedule 12,            

Performance Targets.  

Streetcare Manager 100% 93% Providing waste            

containers to residents 

in a timely manner is          

critical to managing 

waste and cleansing 

and is stipulated in  the       

contract. 

Missed containers from 

households on the    

assisted list during 

scheduled collections. 

Refuse, Recycling and 

Street Cleansing     

Contract 2017-2024, 

Schedule 12,            

Performance Targets.  

Streetcare Manager 0% 0.45% This is a critical part of 

the services for         

residents who are     

unable to place their 

waste at the curtilage of 

their property. 

Operational/ Contractor 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



 

 4 

Performance Indicators 

Performance 

Management 

Framework 

Indicator Rationale Where  Officer Responsible  Target Q1 & 2 

No of enforcement    

notices served for; fly 

tips, litter and         

abandoned vehicles 

These environmental 

crimes have a          

detrimental effect on 

the amenity of the   

Borough 

Council Plan 2017-

2020,  Priority 2, TCI. 

Streetcare Manager For             

information 

only 

Abandoned Vehicle Fines 2 

Fly-tipping Fines  2 

Littering Fines  4 

Section 34             3 

Membership leavers/     

starters at Leisure   

Centre 

Increasing activity rates 

will have a beneficial 

impact on health       

inequalities 

Council Plan 2017-

2020,  Priority 2, HI1. 

Assistant Director –

Community Services. 

N/A Starters 689 

Leavers 497 

Net increase 192 members 

This is the first reporting period 

for this indicator 

Performance Plan 

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



 

 5 

Performance Indicators 

Performance 

Management 

Framework 

Indicator Rationale Where  Officer Responsible  Target Q1 & 2 

No of disabled 

facilities grants  

The increase is contributed to the       

introduction of a non-means tested 

grant. This has meant that there are 

very few refusals compared to previous 

years. We provide funding for a DFG 

dedicated Occupational therapist who 

has enabled more recommendations to 

be processed faster.  

Council Plan 2017

-2020,  Priority 4, 

H6. 

Property Services 

Group Manager 

Q1 & 2 

2018/19 =  

88  

Q1 & 2 2019/20 = 65 

% of market 

stalls available 

for new          

businesses. 

To continue to support small business-

es within the town. 

Council Plan 2017

-2020,  Priority 2, 

TC 1. 

Assistant Director –

Community Services. 

For infor-

mation only 

Currently 61stalls are in use out of 

a total 78 which is 22% available 

for new businesses. 

Continue to  

provide short 

stay, long stay 

and contract 

parking spaces. 

Provision of providing appropriate park-

ing is critical to support local business. 

Council Plan 2017

-2020,  Priority 2, 

TC 5. 

Assistant Director –

Community Services. 

For infor-

mation only 

Total Number of Car Parking 
Spaces – 1386 

Total Number of Contract Spaces 
– 301  

(Total Number of Pay and Display 
Spaces – 902) 

Number of “Free after 3” Spaces – 
550 

Number of Disabled only spaces - 
62 

Performance Plan 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 28th November, 2019

Reporting Officer: Corporate Support Manager

(D)

Title: Street Cleanliness 

Summary and Conclusions: 

To provide Members with an update regarding the Street Cleanliness Working 
Group.

Recommendations: 

Members are invited to agree to continue receiving reports for this work group on 
a quarterly basis. 

Report

The first Street Cleanliness Working Group was held on 11th November, 2019.

Councillor Robson will provide a verbal update at the meeting.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any of 
the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of users 
of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Reporting Author 

Corporate Support Assistant 

Page 30

Agenda Item 9



  Part One

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 28th November, 2019

Reporting Officer: Corporate Support Manager

(D)

Title: Use of Customer Services Data

Summary and Conclusions: 

To provide Members with an update regarding the Customer Services Data. 

Recommendations: 

Members are invited to agree to continue receiving performance reports on a 
quarterly basis.  

Report

At the meeting held in July, it was agreed this report will be sent on a quarterly 
basis. It will take approximately a full reporting year to see differences/ 
anomalies with the customer services data. This report sets out data taken from 
the customer services system between 1st April and 31st October, 2019. 

The data currently cannot be broken down into wards, although a new system 
is being looked into and this request will be part of the specification. 

A verbal update will be provided regarding this period of data.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

Page 31

Agenda Item 10



(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Reporting Author 

Corporate Support Assistant 

Page 32

Agenda Item 10



    Part One

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 28th November, 2019

Reporting Officer: Corporate Support Manager

(D)

Title: Waste Working Group

Summary and Conclusions:

To provide Members with an update regarding the Waste Working Group.

Recommendations: 

Members are invited to consider and note the information provided in this report.

Report

The Scrutiny Waste Working Group (SWWG) is a sub-group of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and meets on a monthly basis.  SWWG is investigating ways 
of improving the performance of the recycling collection services and reports to the 
main Committee on a quarterly basis.  This report is a brief update on SWWG 
activity.

Recommendations delivered to Contract Partnership Board:
Recommendations were delivered to the reconvened Contract Partnership Board.  
The SWWG feels that the resolution of issues with the Materials Recovery Facility 
(MRF) remains the priority and these should be prioritised over changes to 
collection methodology and materials collected.

Visit to Materials Recovery Facility:
FCC and the Street Care Department organised for members of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to visit the Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) on Park Road.

Key observations from the visit were as follows:
 Sampling and compositional analysis of each recycling load tipped does 

help in ensuring consistency of assessing contamination levels, however, 
due to the likelihood of contaminants weighing more than the recyclate, a 
“base-level” of 25% is too low and a new level should be agreed by the 
Partnership Board;

 A degree of “pre-sorting” (prior to the materials being placed on the belt for 
separation would result in more materials being recovered;

 The conveyor belt and pickers process led to a great deal of good quality 
recyclate being lost at the end of the process;

Page 33

Agenda Item 11



 All alternatives for recyclate treatment should be considered, including extra 
resource at the existing MRF through to a more technical option;

 The quality of treatment at the MRF seems to be the key factor in the 
service failing to deliver higher levels of recycling.

Recommendation tracking - RAG spreadsheet:
Much work has been initiated since the Contract Partnership Board was 
reconvened.  In order to ensure recommendations are considered and all relevant 
work to improve service performance is done in a coherent, planned and 
integrated way, SWWG have produced the attached “Red, Amber and Green” 
(RAG) recommendations tracker.  Updates will be reported through Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee as part of the quarterly reports.

Meeting with Executive Director and Environment Spokesperson:
SWWG have invited the Executive Director and Environment Spokesperson to 
their next meeting on 19th November 2019.  The discussions will centre around the 
following agenda items:

 Effective monitoring and assessment of the SWWG’s O&S 
recommendations and capturing work from elsewhere;

 Effective communication  - including the different tiers of officer/contractor 
delivery and management as well as elected representatives within key 
committees;

 Effective  and risk assessed change management;
 Planning and delivering effective communication with residents.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any of 
the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

Page 34

Agenda Item 11



(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of users 
of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Reporting Author 

Alec Proffitt 

Page 35

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Where What Who RAG
How the Council and Contractor can maximise the amount of resource recovered at the MRF
by: Treatment of the materials immediately post-tip, prior to the materials being sorted on the picking line;
How the Council and Contractor can maximise the amount of resource recovered at the MRF
by: More pickers available on the picking line;
How the Council and Contractor can maximise the amount of resource recovered at the MRF
by: Slower pass of materials on the picking line;
How the Council and Contractor can maximise the amount of resource recovered at the MRF
by: More than one pass of materials on the picking line;
How the Council and Contractor can maximise the amount of resource recovered at the MRF
by: Treatment of the materials immediately post-pass after the picking line;
How the Council and Contractor can maximise the amount of resource recovered at the MRF
by:

Treatment or alternative “disposal” route for rejected loads that maximise the diversion of waste from
disposal such as incineration or landfill;

How the Council and Contractor can maximise the amount of resource recovered at the MRF
by: Sourcing and use of a higher quality of MRF treatment.
CPB should provide a collective understanding on: A definitive list of materials that are recyclable through the red bin collection scheme;

CPB should provide a collective understanding on:
Where materials from a. (above) are being reprocessed with a quality, auditable and timely reporting
mechanism to ensure resource is being treated in an ethical, environmental and financially-sound manner;

CPB should provide a collective understanding on:
A figure of acceptable contamination per load at tipping point and a procedure of checking random
sampling;

CPB should provide a collective understanding on:
How invoicing and share of income from sale of recyclate is handled and processed (with a  view to ensuring
both Council and Contractor are incentivised);

CPB should provide a collective understanding on: How and when contract performance figures are exchanged between Council and Contractor.
Ensure the any changes to collection rounds and methodology are subject to robust change
control procedures including communications to the public until the above issues are
addressed and delivered, with any future change being managed effectively

Ensure the any changes to collection rounds and methodology are subject to robust change control
procedures including communications to the public until the above issues are addressed and delivered, with
any future change being managed effectively

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Council Plan 2020-2024
	Council Plan 2020 2024 Version 1 Appendix

	8 Quarter 1-2 Performance Indicators
	Council Performance Indicators with targets Q2 2019 JP

	9 Street Cleanliness
	10 Use of Customer Services Data
	11 Waste Working Group
	WWG RAG Tracker


